Public Document Pack

Agenda
Notice of a public
meeting of:

North Yorkshire Local Access Forum

To:

Paul Sherwood (Chair), Roma Haigh (Vice-Chair),
Janet Cochrane, Rachel Connolly, David Lepper,
Barrie Mounty, Carol Murray, Will Scarlett,
Helen Soutar, Councillor Robert Heseltine &
Councillor David Jeffels

Date:

Wednesday 26th May 2021

Time:

10.00 am

Venue:

Remote meeting held via Microsoft Teams

This meeting will be held using video conferencing with a live broadcast to the Council’s YouTube
site. The Local Authorities and Police and Crime Panels (Coronavirus) (Flexibility of Local
Authority Police and Crime Panel Meetings) (England and Wales) Regulations 2020 lapsed as of 7
May 2021. Any formal decisions that the Committee needs to make that are legally binding will be
made in consultation with by the Chief Executive Officer using his emergency delegated powers,
taking into account the recommendations of the Committee.
The meeting will be available to view once the meeting commences, via the following link www.northyorks.gov.uk/livemeetings. Recording of previous live broadcast meetings are also
available there.

Business
1.

Introductions & Apologies for Absence

2.

Minutes of the Meeting held on 27 January 2021

3.

Public Questions & Statements
Members of the public may ask questions or make statements at this meeting if they
have given notice to Melanie Carr of Democratic Services (see contact details at bottom
of page) by midday on Friday 21 May 2021, three working days before the day of the
meeting. Each speaker should limit themselves to 3 minutes on any item. Members of
the public, who have given notice, will be invited to speak:

(Pages 3 - 10)



At this point in the meeting if their questions/statements relate to matters which are
not otherwise on the Agenda (subject to an overall time limit of 30 minutes);



When the relevant Agenda item is being considered if they wish to speak on a matter
which is on the Agenda for this meeting;



If you are exercising your right to speak at this meeting, but do not wish to be
recorded, please inform the Chairman who will ask anyone who may be taking a
recording to cease while you speak.

Page 1
OFFICIAL

4.

Secretary's Update Report
(Pages 11 - 32)
Purpose: To update LAF members on developments since the last meeting.

5.

Countryside Access Service Unsurfaced Unclassified Roads
(UURs) Management Review

6.

Sub-group Review of NYCC's UUR Statement
(Pages 49 - 52)
Purpose: The report presents the findings from the sub-group review, together with a
number of draft principles for the Forum’s consideration.

7.

Sub-group Review of the County Council's webpages relevant to
(Pages 53 - 58)
NYLAF
Purpose: The report presents the findings from the sub-group review, together with a
number of draft recommendations for the Forum’s consideration.

8.

District Council Liaison & LAF Sub-Group Updates
(Pages 59 - 60)
Purpose: An opportunity for LAF members to update the Forum on District Council liaison
and other LAF representative project activity since the last meeting.

9.

Work Programme
(Pages 61 - 62)
Purpose – To consider, develop and adopt a work programme for future LAF meetings.

10.

Other business which the Chairman agrees should be considered as a matter of
urgency because of special circumstances.

(Pages 33 - 48)

Contact Details
Enquiries relating to this agenda please contact Melanie Carr Tel: 01609 533849 or e-mail:
Melanie.carr1@northyorks.gov.uk
Website: www.northyorks.gov.uk

Barry Khan
Assistance Chief Executive
(Legal and Democratic Services)
County Hall
Northallerton
18 May 2021

Page 2
OFFICIAL

Public Document Pack

Agenda Item 2

North Yorkshire County Council
North Yorkshire Local Access Forum
Minutes of the remote meeting held on Wednesday, 27th Januar, 2021 commencing at 10.00 am.
Present: Paul Sherwood in the Chair. plus Roma Haigh, Doug Cartwright, Janet Cochrane,
Rachel Connolly, David Lepper, Barrie Mounty, Will Scarlett, Helen Soutar and County
Councillor Robert Heseltine.
Officers present: Ian Kelly, Penny Noake, Melanie Carr and Daniel Harry.
In Attendance: Mr Leon Foster
Apologies: Carol Murray and County Councillor David Jeffels.
Copies of all documents considered are in the Minute Book

302

Introductions & Apologies for Absence
Following members of the Local Access Forum introducing themselves, the Chair
confirmed apologies had been received from County Councillor David Jeffels and it was
noted that Roma Haigh would be joining the meeting late.

303

Minutes of the Meeting held on 30 September 2020
Forum members considered the draft Minutes and Will Scarlett confirmed he had
submitted an online response to the Highways Code consultation rather than going
through the NYLAF Secretary.
Doug Cartwright raised the issue of the comment made by the Executive member at the
last meeting in relation to a recent death as a result of cattle, and expressed disappointed
that this had not been included in the minutes.
Resolved - That the Minutes of the meeting held on 30 September 2020 be agreed as a
correct record and signed by the Chair.

304

Public Questions & Statements
It was confirmed that two statements had been received from members of the public. The
first submitted by Mr Michael Bartholomew in relation to agenda item 6. It was agreed his
statement would be considered when the Forum moved to that item on the agenda. The
second, submitted by Mr Ian Foster, did not relate to a specific item on the agenda. In Mr
Foster’s absence, his statement was read out by the Secretary as follows:
‘I am a keen runner who runs on average 50 miles per week. I moved to South Milford
in November 2018. In that time I have explored every right of way in the area and
beyond. I have tried to follow the correct channels where I have been unable to follow
the definitive map. I am talking to you today because following those channels has
been a failure, despite hours and hours of my own time, and I am no further forward
than I was when I first emailed the council.

Page 3
1
OFFICIAL

If there were one or two footpath issues I wouldn’t be here but within 2 miles of my
home, there are no less than 4 footpaths that have been obstructed by a third party –
1 by the A1(M), 1 closed illegally by Network Rail, 1 is blocked by a dyke, a fence and
a sewage works, and 1 is blocked by a mass of vans and the same fence. Clearly
there are historical failings to follow due procedure here – how a motorway be built
across a path with nothing done for 20 years? How can you build Sherburn by-pass
with no pavement, and allow the old road for pedestrians to lapse as a right of way
and become a private road? How can it take 13 years and counting to progress a
straightforward map modification? These are the headline issues, but there are more.
To have a small area with such a high percentage of issues is terrible, is this
representative of the whole county?
There is also a safety issue, which I have raised but failed to receive a single
comment on – one of the blocked paths leaves users left walking for around 1 km
down the unlit, unpaved, verge of the 60mph B1222 with the Bishop Dyke to one side
which cannot be safe. There is clearly a viscous circle here, no one will use the paths
because no one can, which means the council can justify that nothing is done, despite
the masses of new houses being built nearby.
There needs to be greater transparency - a clear process flow chart to allow users to
understand what will happen when paths are blocked and/or feedback is sent to the
councils, including target timescales for responses, and actions.
I fully understand that NYCC is responsible for a lot of footpaths, but why can’t the
third parties who have blocked these paths be instructed to reinstate the rights of way
at their own time and cost, with a deadline to do so?
I had the naïve hope the council would welcome feedback and act on it. I would have
been more than satisfied if I had a single email, or a telephone call that proved
somebody cared for the right of public access and was willing to discuss the issues
properly and in detail. For example, I was promised in July a case officer would make
a site visit to one path. Has that happened? I have no idea.
Nobody has bothered to update me. Nobody bothered to tell me when Network Rail
finally undertook the correct process to close the foot crossing in September. I even
got my MP involved, to try and kick start of some kind of action and the answers were
the same vague ones, which also suggested my queries had been answered,
misleadingly.
Most telling is that there has not even been a hint of an apology that I cannot access
the obstructed rights of way. I was amazed to read in the minutes of the last forum the
council considers that having 10% of the rights of way obstructed is a success. If this
10% were the road network, there would be uproar, yet we are meant to be in a
climate emergency? How any of this fits with the councils vision that Every adult has
a longer, healthier and independent life I have little idea.
It would be very easy for myself and others to back down in the face of the continual
and repeated stonewalling, for that is what it is, of these issues from the council. I am
sure many others have. But I simply want to be able to exercise my legal right to
follow a right of way in my local area. Given Covid this is more important than ever.
Why should I not be allowed to do this?’
In response, Ian Kelly - Countryside Access Manager, apologised that Mr Foster’s
experience of the public rights of way in his area had not met his expectations. He noted
that the numerous issues on the network reported by Mr Foster had been logged on CAMS
(Countryside Access Management System) and were being actioned by the Countryside
Access Service.

2of rights of way in the country and received
He noted the Council had the biggestPage
network4
OFFICIAL

a large number of requests every year. He also noted the Countryside Access Service did
not have the capacity to deal with them all immediately and therefore had to implement a
prioritisation system to deal with them, which took account of the priority of the route, and
any associated risks and impact on users.
Ian Kelly also confirmed that Mr Foster’s concerns had been escalated through the
Council’s formal complaints system, and that it had been concluded that the service was
dealing with the issues he reported appropriately, using the prioritisation system in place.
He noted that Mr Foster had been advised that he could choose to refer the matter to the
Local Government and Social Care Ombudsman if he so wished.
Finally, Ian Kelly acknowledged that Mr Foster’s statement did raise supplementary points
concerning customer feedback. He agreed tit was an area where there was scope for
improvement and therefore confirmed Mr Foster’s comments had been noted.

305

Proposed Changes to the System of Prioritisation for Definitive Map Modification
Order Applications
Forum Members considered a report presented by Penny Noake, NYCC Definitive Map
officer. The report provided an overview of the proposed changes to the system of
prioritising applications for Definitive Map Modification Orders (DMMOs) to address the
backlog of applications that are made to either request new routes be added to the
definitive map i.e. those not already recorded as public rights of way, or for changing the
particulars of a route already recorded, or for the deletion of a route where somebody feels
the route should never have been recorded in the first place.
It was confirmed:


There was a reasonable sized backlog, similar to other equally sized counties, but with
an increase in applications in the lead up to the cut off date for 2026;



Local Authorities were still awaiting the regulations from the De-regulation Act;



A basic prioritisation system had been in place since 2003, which resulted in many
applications being equally scored;



The LAF was previously consulted on some modifications to the system, which
introduced some further prioritisation options e.g. the route’s benefits to the
community;



One of the flaws of the system was that those routes that had low points were left
continually sitting at the bottom of the list, and it was unlikely they would ever get dealt
with, which was deemed unfair;



The quality of the newer applications being submitted was exacerbating the problem;



A review of other Authorities prioritisation methods was undertaken and it was noted
that a good number of those were dealing with the oldest submission first;



Forum members’ views on the proposals were being sought ahead of a formal
consultation with applicants.
The findings from both would inform the
recommendations arising for formal approval;

Forum members considered the proposals in the report and agreed going in date order
was the best way forward, with the proviso that for those seeking modification to an
existing PROW, where there was any form of health and safety risk, that application be
prioritised. It was also suggested that an indication of the time it would take to respond to
the application should be given, but Penny Noake explained why it would be difficult to
predict this with any degree of accuracy.
The issue of the lack of data/researchPage
submitted
3 with the older applications on the system
5
OFFICIAL

was noted. It was recognised there was a danger that on that basis those applications
would be dismissed and it was suggested that those applicants be informed that their
applications would benefit from some further supporting data to strengthen the application.
It was also suggested that applicants would benefit from advice on what type of evidence
to provide that would carry the most weight in support of their application.
The limited resources available to deal with the applications was raised, and it was
confirmed that one additional Principal Definitive Map Officer had recently been recruited
to help drive the work forward. Also that more staff resource was now available as a result
of the completion of other definitive map work.
It was also confirmed that last year the number of NYCC had 150 outstanding applications,
ten of which were 20 years old or more (increasing the Authority’s risk of challenge), nine
appeals waiting to go the Secretary of State, and seven already with them.
The use of volunteers to support the work of the Definitive Map team was raised, and Ian
Kelly confirmed 100 volunteers were currently on the books and work was underway to
look at how to broaden their remit. Also, that a Volunteer Co-ordinator would be joining the
team soon.
The Chair requested an update on the make-up of the team and the Forum gave its formal
support to the re-prioritisation of applications based on submission date.
306

Report on future Purpose of North Yorkshire Local Access Forum
Paul Sherwood, Chair of the LAF introduced the item and sought the views of Forum
members.
As a new Forum member, Will Scarlett provided an overview of his pre-conception of how
the Forum worked and the type of issues it got involved in, and compared that to his
experience to date of being a Forum member.
Forum Members discussed the proposals raised in the report on future ways of working.
In regard to the consideration of planning applications, Members discussed whether that
should only happen where they were likely to affect the PROW network e.g. where it
required the modification, creation or extinguishing of a PROW.
Rachel Connolly
reminded the Forum that sustainable transport and safe walking/cycling routes was also
part of the Forum’s remit, and feedback from the Planning Authorities showed that advice
from the LAF was valued.
It was noted that access issues were also dealt with by Highways. Ian Kelly gave a
number of examples on behalf of the Network Strategy Team e.g. local cycle and walking
infrastructure plans and bid opportunities for active travel schemes etc. It was suggested
that the scope of the focus of the Forum should be expanded to other departments across
the Council, and it was agreed that such opportunities should be explored and added to
the Forum’s work programme.
Members agreed that for any topic under discussion the focus should be on the strategic
position. They also agreed:


The focus on Access issues should also include peripheral issues and benefits
associated with Access;



UCRs should be part of the Forum’s remit;



The principal of using sub-groups to facilitate the work of the Forum. It was agreed
they should be set up on an ad-hoc basis as and when specific pieces of work
required it. They should meet Page
informally
4 and as regularly as required in order to
6
OFFICIAL

progress a piece of work The focus of those groups should be on reaching a
consensus on the topic to enable proposals to be brought forward to a formal meeting
of the full Forum for resolution;


307

A NYLAF website was not required but the information on the Council’s website
should be enhanced to raise the Forum’s profile and draw more attention to PROW;

Unsurfaced Unclassified County Roads Discussion Document
A statement submitted by Mr Michael Bartholomew on behalf of Yorkshire Dales Green
Lanes Alliance was read out to the Forum by the Secretary in Mr Bartholomew absence,
as follows:
1. Should the LAF take a view, and make recommendations, concerning the management
of Unsurfaced Unclassified Roads? We believe it should. UURs are an important part
of the network of rural tracks that give the public access to the countryside. UURs
certainly bear rights for pedestrians, and in many cases bear higher rights, up to full
carriageway rights. It has never been clear why they should be excluded from the
remit of LAFs. There are some green lanes that start as Byways Open to all Traffic
(BOATs), turn into UURs, then into bridleways, and maybe even back into BOATs as
they approach their end, even though, on the ground, they are continuous green lanes
with a single physical character. It makes no sense to arbitrarily exclude UURs from
consideration by LAFs.
2. What gives UURs a particular significance, and therefore should engage the LAFs
attention, is the destruction of numbers of UURs by recreational motor vehicles, and
the malign impact of non-essential motors on the amenity of other users, including
farmers and landowners.
3. If the LAF does consider the management of particular UURs, what approach should it
take? For a start, it should always go out and inspect, first-hand, any UUR that is
causing concern, and it should keep an open mind about what, if anything, it might
recommend to the highways department of NYCC about its management. (UURs are
administered by Highways, not Rights of Way.) The LAF’s fundamental and highest
obligation is the protection of the countryside. If it considers that the use to which any
particular UUR is subject is consistent with the protection of the countryside, plainly, it
should do nothing. If it ain’t broke, don’t mend it. But if the LAF finds that 4x4s and
motorbikes are destroying the fabric of the UUR, and are jeopardising the amenity of
farmers and other recreational users, it should consider making a recommendation
that a traffic regulation order, prohibiting non-essential motors, should be imposed.
4. The LAF should not assert, in advance of a survey of any particular UUR, that the route
must be kept open to all users that have a legal right to use it. Clearly, rights should
not capriciously be set aside, but in the case of motor vehicles on UURs, it may, in
many cases, be perfectly reasonable to impose regulations that require vehicle users
to leave their vehicles where the tarmac stops and enjoy green lanes on horseback,
on a bicycle, or their own two feet.
Paul Sherwood, Chair of NYLAF recorded his thanks to Mr Bartholomew for his
contribution and went on to introduce his discussion document on Unsurfaced,
Unclassified County Roads which drew attention to the research previously carried out by
Mr Batholomew when he was a member of the Forum.
Doug Cartwright highlighted the issue of access and not prohibition. He confirmed that
motorcycle trail riding community would feel threatened by some of the views expressed
by the Yorkshire Dales Green Lanes Alliance as they did not support their legitimate
pastime. He also confirmed he fully supported UCRs being part of NYLAF’s remit and
Page 7
5 in a balanced way that was equitable to
sought reassurance that it would be approached
OFFICIAL

all legitimate users.
It was noted that the suggestion of including UCRs in the Forum’s remit had been
discussed previously without any formal resolution. It was also noted that they were not a
PROW but rather a category six highway, and therefore any discussions around policy
would need to undertaken with the Highways Team. Whereas issues around maintenance
were the purview of the Countryside Access Team It was suggested that when Highways
had any questions around the regulation of UCRs, the Forum’s views should be sought.
A suggestion was also made that the Forum consider and produce a strategic response to
NYCC’s UUR Statement which was fuelling some of the DMMO backlog, and that an
informal sub-group be set up to carry out that piece of work.
Resolved – That:

308

i)

UCRs be included in NYLAF’s remit and the terms of Reference be updated to
reflect that.

ii)

A sub-group made up of the following members be set up to consider NYCC’s UUR
Statement, with input from an appropriate NYCC Highways officer, if necessary:
 Barrie Mounty
 Doug Cartwright
 Janet Cochrane
 Will Scarlett

iii)

That NYCC’s UUR Statement be added to the work programme for the next meeting

Secretary's Update Report
Considered –
The report of the Secretary, which updated on developments since the last meeting.
Attention was drawn to the overview provided on the work of the Countryside Access
Service throughout the pandemic period, and the update on the working relationship
between the NYCC’s Countryside Access Service (CAS) and the District Council’s
planning departments, both provided by Ian Kelly, CAS Manager.
Resolved – That the update be noted.

309

District Council & LAF Project Updates
Considered –
The report of the Secretary giving LAF members the opportunity to update the Forum on
District Council liaison and other LAF representative project activity since the last meeting.
In addition to the information provided for the report, the Chair confirmed he had received
no further information on the progression of the A66 works.
Rachel Connolly provided an update on the A1, confirming Highways England were hoping
to offer alternatives in lieu of their failure to provide for NMU on the A1 project. Ian Kelly
confirmed that a meeting with Highways England had been arranged to go through a
scoping report they had produced detailing a number of proposed mitigations.
In regard to the A19, it was noted that Highways England wanted to close all of the

Page 8
6
OFFICIAL

reservations, and it was hoped that in that instance they would take steps to maintain
connectivity for NMUs. It was suggested the Forum take a proactive approach with
Highways England by writing to them asking what mitigations would be introduced
The role of district liaison was also discussed and it was suggested that a more uniform
approached across all areas should be introduced. Rachel Connolly outlined how she
engaged with a number of the District Councils, and suggested that as one size would not
fit all, each liaison should come to an arrangement which worked best for them.
In regard to direct contact with the Countryside Access Team to discuss issues relating to
specific districts, Ian Kelly suggested from a capacity perspective it would be difficult to
support and sustain.
Finally, Rachel Connolly provided feedback she had sought from a representative from
Natural England that confirmed that some form of review of a Rights of Way Improvement
Plan should be undertaken during a 10-year period, in line with section 60 of the PRO Act.
Ian Kelly confirmed there was no plan in place to update NYCC’s Rights of Way
Improvement Plan. He also confirmed that 45% of Local Authorities were in the same
position. He noted that a light touch review would likely take place at the same time as
Highways undertook a refresh of the Local Transport Plan, in approximately a year’s time,
and agreed to consider how the Forum might help in that process at the appropriate time.
It was agreed that the current Plan was now very out of date and the landscape had
changed significantly. Rachel Connolly suggested the Forum should look at the existing
Plan in order to support and inform any future revisions, but following discussions it was
agreed that the views of the Forum would be sought at the time that CAS undertook its
review.
Will Scarlett suggested the Forum could undertake a review of the information on the
Council’s website relating to ROW and walks etc and how the information provided could
be enhanced. It was confirmed that it was unlikely that the Forum would be allowed
additional pages on the website, but the content on the existing pages could be revised.
Ian Kelly raised the issue of advertising walking routes on the website and the knock on
effect that can have on the CAS team through greater footfall and more reports of
accessibility problems. He proposed it might be better to signpost to other walking
websites. It was suggested that a review of the webpages with proposals for improvements
brought back to a future meeting, and Will Scarlett volunteered to undertake that review.
In terms of the number of Forum meetings in a year Janet Cochrane suggested it be
increased to four, with perhaps two held remotely and two held in person. She also raised
the issue of recruitment and the need for new members with specific skills. It was
suggested that a rolling programme of recruitment might be a more useful way of
identifying potential new members with the relevant skills and knowledge.
In response, the Democratic Services Manager confirmed that for the time being meetings
would continue to be held remotely. He also questioned whether at this stage there was
sufficient work to warrant a fourth formal meeting in the municipal year. Instead he
suggested that through the use of sub-groups it would be possible to progress the work of
the Forum without the need for an additional formal meeting.
Finally, he welcomed suggestions on alternatives routes to recruitment and it was agreed
that the Chair would provide information on the working practices for recruitment by other
local authorities.
Resolved – That:

Page 9
7
OFFICIAL

i)

The additional information provided at the meeting be noted, alongside the written
updates provided in the report.

ii)

A letter to Highways England in regard to the A19 be drafted by Rachel Connolly and
circulated for comment to all Forum Members

iii) Will Scarlett to take on the role of District Liaison for Craven.
iv) Rachel Connolly to circulate a revised guidance note on how she works as a District
Liaison

310

v)

Will Scarlett undertake a review of the Council’s two webpages linked to ROW etc

vi)

Information on recruitment from other Local Authorities to be provided by the Chair

Forward Plan
Considered –
Members considered the Forward Plan provided at Appendix 1 to the report, and invited
members to identify any additional items of business to be added.
Resolved - That the Work Programme document be updated in line with the discussions
at the meeting.

The meeting concluded at 1.00 pm.

Page
Page10
8
OFFICIAL

Agenda Item 4
North Yorkshire Local Access Forum
26 May 2021
Secretary’s Update Report
1.0

Purpose of the Report

1.1 To update members of the Local Access Forum on developments since the last
meeting of NYLAF.
2.0

Consultation Submissions & Responses

2.1 There have been three consultation requests received since the last meeting:
February 2021 – Preferred Options Consultation on the Selby District Local Plan
March 2021 – NYCC Active Travel Fund Harrogate & Whitby
April 2021 – Selby District Places and Movement Study
3.0

Other Updates

3.1

Local Development Plans
One of the key areas of involvement for the Forum is to ensure appropriate
engagement in the preparation of Local Development Plans. Set out in the table
below is an updated summary of the current position in relation to each District
Council area, and in relation to the Minerals and Waste Joint Plan. This information is
taken from the websites of the relevant authorities and correspondence received.
Authority
Craven

Status
In Craven (outside the Yorkshire Dales National Park) the
development plan comprises the Craven Local Plan 2012 to 2032,
neighbourhood plans and the Minerals and Waste Joint Plan. The
Plan was adopted in November 2019.
A provisional date of October 2023 has been set for the publication
of results of a formal review of the Craven Local Plan in order to
meet the Government’s requirement for a review to be completed 5
years after its adoption i.e. by Nov 2024.

Hambleton

The Hambleton Local Plan was submitted to the Secretary of State
(Planning Inspectorate) for examination on 31 March 2020.
The estimated timetable for progressing to the adoption of the Plan
is as follows:

Estimated examination period March 2020 to February 2021

Receipt of inspector's report March 2021

Estimated date of adoption April 2021

Harrogate

Harrogate District’s Local Plan 2014-2035 was adopted on 4
March 2020.
Following adoption, a legal challenge was raised against the new
settlement policies in the High Court and a judgement was issued

Page 11
OFFICIAL

on 26 November 2020. In-line with the court order accompanying
the judgement, the whole of the local plan was remitted to the
council to consider whether or not to:

accept the Inspector's recommendations, in so far as they
related to the new settlement policies and;

adopt the local plan with those policies, taking into account the
full Sustainability Appraisal (SA) documentation and
consultation responses.
The council subsequently agreed to adopt the local plan with the
new settlement policies on 9 December 2020.
Richmondshire The Local Plan 2018-2035 will be a single document and
comprise of a review of the adopted Local Plan Core Strategy
2012-2028 and will provide site allocations, area strategy for
Catterick Garrison, land use designations, revised Development
Limits for settlements identified in the settlement hierarchy and
detailed development policies. It will include an updated and
revised Proposals Map.
Examination Hearings were scheduled for Spring 2021 with the
intention of the Plan being adopted in Winter 2021.
Ryedale District Council are in the process of reviewing their Local
Ryedale
Plan which covers the period 2012- 2027. A two-month ‘Call for
Sites’ consultation has been launched and will close on 5 July
2021.
It is anticipated the proposed site allocations will be published in
September 2022. Prior to this, two interim consultations on the
sites will be undertaken. The first, an initial open-ended site
consultation making communities and consultees aware of the
sites, is due to start before August 2021.
Once they have a group of potential allocations, an options
consultation will be undertaken in the spring of 2022 to explore the
choices, informed extensively by the initial consultation, evidence
base collection and analysis and interactive development of the
distribution strategy.
Scarborough
Scarborough Borough Council formally adopted their Local Plan
2011/32 on 3 July 2017. It is currently under review, and the
consultation on the first stage of the review (the Issues and
Options stage) concluded in late 2020.
Selby
A new Local Development Scheme for the period 2019 to 2023
came into effect on 17 September 2019. The scheme identified
which Local Plan documents the Council would progress over the
next four years, together with the programme for their preparation,
and key consultation milestones.
In line with the Scheme, a six-week consultation on the Local Plan
Issues and Options ended 6 March 2020.
Most recently, a six week consultation was undertaken between
29 January and 12 March 2021 for the Preferred Options Local
Plan 2021.

Page 12
OFFICIAL

Minerals and
Waste Joint
Plan

The Order of 14 May 2019 declared the Secretary of State's
decision of 24 July 2018 to adopt paragraph 209(a) of the revised
Framework unlawful, and quashed it.
The Inspector invited the Mineral Planning Authorities and any
other interested parties to comment on the High Court Judgement
and Order and the implications for the joint plan. The Inspectors
response to the Joint Authorities response to the High Court
Judgement can be viewed at: INS16 Inspector response Oct
2019.pdf (northyorks.gov.uk)
May 2021 - There is no further update available at this time

3.2

Open Access Restrictions
The Forum is consulted on a range of restrictions under the Countryside and Rights
of Way Act 2000. Since the last meeting there have been three discretionary dog
restrictions, received from the Open Access Contact Centre at Natural England
confirming restrictions under Section 23(1) of the Countryside and Rights of Way Act
2000.

3.3 There has also been seven discretionary ‘28 Day’ restriction under Section 22 of the
Countryside and Rights of Way Act 2000 - Landowners may close their access land
for up to 28 days in any one year. They are not permitted to close their land on (a)
bank holidays, (b) more than 4 days in a year that are Saturdays or Sundays, (c) any
Saturday between 1 June and 11 August, (d) any Sunday between 1 June and 30
September. Landowners are not obliged to tell the public about forthcoming closures,
or give reasons. Their legal duty is simply to inform the relevant authority of their
intentions.
3.4 Regional Forum
The draft Minutes from the last meeting of the Yorkshire Humber and North
Lincolnshire Regional Access Forum held on 10 March 2021, were circulated to
Forum members via email by the Chair on 8 April 2021.
3.5 The next meeting of the Regional Forum will be held on the 8 September 2021 at
Leeds Civic Hall (Covid restrictions permitting).
3.6

2026 / Definitive Map
There are no changes or updates to report.

3.7

Countryside Access Service Team Update
Ian Kelly, Countryside Access Manager has provided an update structure chart for
his team for Forum members’ information – see Appendix A.

3.8 Terms of Reference
The Chair has proposed some minor revisions to NYLAF’s Terms of Reference to
take account of the decision taken at the last meeting about the use of sub-groups to
progress areas of work between formal meetings. Members are asked to consider
those proposed changes shown as tracked changes in Section 11 – ‘Sub-groups and
Working Groups’ - see Terms of Reference document attached at Appendix B.

Page 13
OFFICIAL

4.0

Forum Membership & Future Recruitment

4.1

The County Council has always followed a formal approach to recruitment for NYLAF
along similar lines to that used for NYCC officers. This has included advertising the
vacancies on the County Council’s website, Parish Council noticeboards, and via a
press release to various newspapers. We have also made direct contact with
organisations such as the CLA and Farmers Union etc in an attempt to widen the
variety of personal interests within our membership.

4.2 We have offered informal chats in order to encourage interested members of the
public to apply, and we have provided an application pack containing a formal
application form together with information about what the Forum does and what
being a member involves, and a role description and person specification for
prospective members.
4.3

For the last full recruitment drive held in November 2018, we received twenty-two
applications, six of which were from previous NYLAF members who had recently
come to the end of their tenure (all of whom were reappointed). Of the remaining
applicants, nine were shortlisted for interview and five were offered a position on the
Forum. The interviews were carried out by a panel of NYCC officers made up of the
Democratic Services Manager, the CAS Manager and a manager from an
unconnected service.

4.4

Between March 2019 and March 2020 two of the re-appointed previous members
and three of the new members resigned. To fill the first of those vacancies, in spring
2019, we re-appointed a previous member who had indicated they would welcome
the opportunity to re-join the Forum, without going through the formal recruitment
process detailed above.

4.5 In late 2019 we again carried out the full formal process. Ten applications were
received, seven applicants were shortlisted and interviewed, resulting in three new
members being appointed.
4.5

As we now have two vacancies on the Forum (following the recent resignation of
Doug Cartwright), we need to recruit to the two vacant positions. To support us in
considering the best approach to take, the Chair has sought information from other
LAFs on their recruitment process and will provide a verbal update at the meeting.
We would also like to gather your views and suggestions for an alternative way
forward. For example, the Chair could be included on the interview panel; or a more
informal approach could be taken where current members propose possible
candidates etc and those individuals are asked to come in for an informal chat with
the Democratic Services Manager.

5.0

Draft Position Statements

5.1 The Forum has two draft position statements to consider. The first has been adopted
by the Yorkshire & Humber Regional Access Forum. It has been offered to Local
Access Forums within the Region for them to consider it for adoption, either as it
stands or modified to suit local circumstances – see Appendix C.

Page 14
OFFICIAL

5.2 The second draft position statement has been provided by the Chair. It focuses on
the Forum’s preliminary involvement in major projects – See Appendix D. Again, the
Forum is asked consider it for adoption, either as it stands or with some agreed
amendments.
Recommendations
6.1 The Local Access Forum is recommended to:
i)
ii)
iii)
iv)
v)
vi)

Note the update report;
Note the CAS structure shown at Appendix A;
Agree the proposed changes to NYLAF’s Terms of Reference, as shown in
Section 11 of Appendix B;
Provide feedback on the current recruitment process and any suggestions for
an alternative way forward;
Agree whether to amend and/or adopt the draft Position Statement on Shared
Use at Appendix C;
Agree whether to amend and/or adopt the draft Position Statement on
Preliminary Involvement in Major Projects at Appendix D;

BARRY KHAN
Assistant Chief Executive (Legal and Democratic Services)
County Hall, NORTHALLERTON
Report Author: Melanie Carr, Secretary to North Yorkshire Local Access Forum
Appendices:
Appendix A – CAS Structure Chart
Appendix B – Proposed changes to NYLAF’s Terms of Reference
Appendix C – Draft Position Statement on Shared Use
Appendix D – Draft Position Statement for Preliminary Involvement in Major Projects

Page 15
OFFICIAL

This page is intentionally left blank

Appendix A

Countryside Access
Manager

Ian Kelly

Principal PROW
Officer

Principal Definitive
Map Officer

Principal Definitive
Map Officer

Brian Mullins

Ron Allan

Penny Noake

Page 17

Countryside
Access Definitive
Map Officer

Countryside
Access Definitive
Map Officer

Countryside
Access Definitive
Map Officer

Countryside
Access Definitive
Map Officer

Countryside
Access Definitive
Map Officer

Countryside
Access
Technical Officer

Countryside
Access
Technical Officer

Countryside
Access
Technical Officer

Beth Brown

Andrew Hunter

Sarah Blakemore

Claire Phillips

Stephen Metcalfe

Alicia Atkinson

Sarah McDonald

Geoffrey McCarthy

(0.6FTE)

Volunteer CoOrdinator

PROW Officer

PROW Officer

Acting PROW
Officer

PROW Officer

PROW Officer
UUR

PROW Field Officer

PROW Field Officer

Arrietty Heath

Nicky Bunting

Rosie Sanderson

Catherine Inman

Andy Brown

Mike Gurney

Andrew Hall

VACANT

Countryside
Volunteers

#

OFFICIAL

This page is intentionally left blank

Appendix B
Terms of Reference for the North Yorkshire Local Access Forum
The Local Access Forum for the county of North Yorkshire shall be known as the North
Yorkshire Local Access Forum (herein referred to as ‘NYLAF’).
Local Access Forums (LAFs) are advisory bodies established under sections 94 and 95
of the Countryside and Rights of Way Act 2000 (CROW). LAFs are established by local
highway authorities. North Yorkshire County Council is the Appointing Authority for the
NYLAF (herein referred to as ‘the Appointing Authority’).
In 2007 Defra published the Local Access Forums (England) Regulations 2007 (herein
referred to as ‘the Regulations’). These came into force on 19th March 2007 with
additional Guidance from the Secretary of State and form the basis of the Terms of
Reference of the Local Access Forum for North Yorkshire.
1.

Geographical Coverage

1.1 NYLAF covers the administrative county of North Yorkshire, including the
Howardian Hills Area of Outstanding Natural Beauty, the Nidderdale Area of
Outstanding Natural Beauty and a small section of the Forest of Bowland Area of
Outstanding Natural Beauty.
1.2 It excludes the area of the administrative unitary authority of the City of York, the
North York Moors National Park & the Yorkshire Dales National Park.
2.

Role

2.1 The primary purpose of the Forum is to provide advice to a range of organisations
specified in the CROW Act 2000 and in supplementary regulations and guidance.
Specifically to:
‘advise its appointing authority and other specified bodies (listed in Annex
A) as to the improvement of public access to land1 in the area, for the
purposes of open-air recreation and the enjoyment of the area, and as to
such other matters as may be prescribed.
2.2 Where there is no demonstrable connection to land access, NYLAF should not
proceed on a matter.
2.3 In carrying out its functions, a local access forum shall have regard to(a) the needs of land management,
(b) the desirability of conserving the natural beauty of the area for which it is
established, including the flora, fauna and geological and physiographical
features of the area, and
(c) guidance given from time to time by the Secretary of State. (94 (6)).
2.4 NYLAF shall:

1

‘Land’ includes land covered by water

Page 19
OFFICIAL

Appendix B
i.

Set its own priorities depending on local issues, as well as providing a local
input to consultation and draft policy documents.

ii.

Provide advice to the Appointing Authority and other authorities on the
improvement of public access to land within the County for the purpose of
travel, open-air recreation and enjoyment of the area or any other lawful
purpose.

iii. Respond to consultations by Government Departments and Agencies on
Access land registered common land and other open country.
iv. Advise the Appointing Authority on the management of the Rights of Way
network through the Rights of Way Improvement Plan for the County.
v.

Comment on the Appointing Authority’s and other relevant local authorities’
access strategies with a view to developing additional opportunities for people
to enjoy access to the environment.

vi. Seek representation on and offer advice to other bodies working to similar aims.
vii. Advise Natural England on the operation of open access restrictions,
management and mapping.
viii. Advise on the promotion of opportunities for the appropriate use and enjoyment
of the countryside.
ix. Advise on the opportunities afforded to NYLAF through engagement with Local
Nature Partnerships (LNPs) and Local Enterprise Partnerships (LEPs); and
other matters relating to the provision of access and opportunities for the
enjoyment of the natural environment.
x.

3.

Seek opportunities to engage with managers of land to advise them of the
opportunities available to promote and manage the provision of access
including green spaces.

Responsibilities

3.1 In carrying out its function, NYLAF will have regard to biodiversity, wildlife
management, the flora, fauna and geological and physiological features of the area
and the needs and interests of landowners, land managers, user groups and the
public at large.
3.2 NYLAF will respect local circumstances as well as environmental, social, economic
and educational interests.
3.3 NYLAF will take into account statutory guidance issued by the Secretary of State
whilst operating within the Countryside and Rights of Way Act and regulations made
thereafter.
4.

Funding

4.1 The Appointing Authority is responsible for the costs of running NYLAF. This
includes paying for:


The provision of a secretary for NYLAF



Members expenses – travel, subsistence and child care



The publication of NYLAF’s annual report

Page 20
OFFICIAL

Appendix B
5.

Membership of NYLAF

5.1 NYLAF shall consist of a maximum of 13 members.
5.2 Based on a membership of 13, the maximum number of members of NYLAF who
may also be members of a district or borough council or the Appointing Authority is
two.
5.3 The process for the appointment of members should be fair and transparent,
following the Appointing Authority’s policies on social inclusion and diversity.
5.4 Members will be appointed for a period up to three years - there is no limit to the
number of times a member can be appointed.
5.5 In order to maintain some continuity of experience, recruitment will take place by
thirds, on an annual basis.
5.6 Individual members will represent a field of interest rather than a particular
organisation of which they might also be a member. A reasonable balance of
members representing different interests should be maintained. These will be
representative of:


Users of rights of way and open access land



Owners and occupiers of land which may have a public right of way



Any other interests especially relevant to the authority’s area, such as tourism,
nature and heritage conservation, coastal issues, health, public transport or
community safety

5.7 A member may resign by notice in writing.
5.8 The Appointing Authority may terminate the appointment of a member if:
a) Without consent they fail to attend meetings for a year; or
b) Fail to declare an interest they have in a matter to be considered by NYLAF; or
c) If the Appointing Authority is satisfied that they have become a member of a
local authority in the area covered by NYLAF and as a result paragraph 5.2 has
not been complied with.
6.

Chair & Vice Chair

6.1 The Chair and Vice Chair will be drawn from NYLAF members. They will be elected
by two ballots. Whenever possible the Chair and Vice Chair should represent
different categories of interest. Members of the Appointing Authority will not be
eligible for either position.
6.2 The appointment to these posts will be renewed on an annual basis. In the event
that either post become vacant during the period of appointment. NYLAF may
decide that both posts should be filled afresh. The total period during which a
member may be Chair or Vice Chair will not exceed the period of their appointment
as a member.

Page 21
OFFICIAL

Appendix B
6.3 For the purposes of the election of officers NYLAFs year is deemed to be the
calendar year and elections will be held at the first meeting each year.
6.4 Where neither the Chair nor Vice Chair are able to attend a meeting, NYLAF may
choose to elect a Chair for the duration of that meeting only.
7.

Meeting of the Forum

7.1 Meetings are to be held at least three times a year.
7.2 The meetings shall be deemed to be quorate when half the then membership or
nine members are present, whichever is the smaller number.
7.3 Members who have a personal interest, whether direct or indirect, in a matter to be
discussed by NYLAF should disclose that interest at the meeting. A personal
interest is defined as one which might affect a member’s wellbeing, financial
position or business, or that of a relative or friend, to a greater extent than that of
other inhabitants of the area. Personal interests will be recorded in the Minutes but
will not necessarily prohibit that member from taking part in the discussion of that
item.
7.4 Copies of the agenda for each meeting and any reports will be made available for
inspection by the public at County Hall and on the Appointing Authority’s website at
least five clear working days before the meeting or as soon as possible if a meeting
is convened at short notice.
7.5 The papers and minutes of each meeting will be made available for inspection by
the public at County Hall and on the Appointing Authority’s website for a period of
two years after the meeting.
7.6 The Chair may, with the permission of NYLAF, vary the order of business to that set
out on the agenda.
7.7 Voting shall be by show of hands and all decisions shall be decided by a majority of
the Members present. In the event of an equality of votes the Chair may exercise a
second or casting vote.
8.

Public Access to Meetings

8.1 The meetings will be open to the public but people may be excluded if necessary to
prevent disorderly conduct or misbehaviour.
8.2 Members of the public wishing to speak at the meeting must inform the Appointing
Authority at least one working day before the meeting is held.
8.3 Observers may at the discretion of the Chair, attend and take part in the discussion
but cannot vote or take part in decision-making.
9.

Secretary

9.1 The Appointing Authority will nominate an officer to act as the interface with NYLAF
and advise NYLAF, and fulfil the responsibilities of a secretary.

Page 22
OFFICIAL

Appendix B
9.2 The Secretary will, in conjunction with the Chair, be responsible for the overall
administration of NYLAF, including organising the meetings, drafting the minutes,
producing the draft annual report and liaising with neighbouring Forums and the
Appointing Authority.
10. Annual Report
10.1 NYLAF shall produce an annual report on its work which the Appointing Authority
will publish and make available online.
11. Sub-groups and Working Groups
11.1 NYLAF may approve the creation of sub-groups and working groups (herein
referred to as sub-groups) to assist with the work of NYLAF. Sub-groups will be
created and disbanded when appropriate for a specific piece of work, as agreed by
NYLAF. A sub-group may appoint a Chair only for the purposes of representing the
sub-group at NYLAF meetings and administration.
11.2 The work of any sub-group will be to act in an advisory capacity to NYLAF. Its
scope and work programme will be set by NYLAF.

11.3 NYLAF as an official body supersedes all work of the sub-groups.
11.4 Sub-groups meetings will be held informally without the need for a published
agenda or minutes. A sub-group may produce a report of their meetings to NYLAF
and all work undertaken by a sub-group must be approved at the NYLAF.
11.5 The administration and logistics of sub-groups will be arranged by the sub-group
itself.
12. Communication
12.1 All communication received and sent by NYLAF must be noted and/or approved at
a meeting of NYLAF. Correspondence having then been agreed, should be sent by
the Chair or Secretary on behalf of NYLAF.
12.2 The timing of requests for advice or consultations may not always correspond with
NYLAF’s meeting cycle. Liaison with the Appointing Authority in preparing the
forward work programme and setting meeting dates should minimise this. NYLAF
may also anticipate the need for advice and plan ahead by developing (and keeping
under review) a generic ‘position statement’ setting out advice on broad principles
or key issues which can be used, when appropriate, for responding when advice is
required between NYLAF meeting – see advice and principles at Annex B.
12.3 The Chair may discuss the handling of issues with other NYLAF members by
telephone, email, social media etc. Depending on the importance of the issues
raised the Chair may decide that:


The issue should be added to the agenda of the next NYLAF meeting;

Page 23
OFFICIAL

Appendix B


Previous advice or a pre-agreed position statement provides adequate or
interim advice.



A formal response has to be provided before the next formal meeting.

12.4 In the event that communication as described on paragraph 11.2 is required, the
Chair must seek general approval from other NYLAF members before sending any
communication, and must take into account all interests of NYLAF as outlined in
paragraph 5.6. Any communication sent in this manner must still be noted at a
meeting of NYLAF.
12.5 Chairs of sub-groups may write to third parties on routine matters e.g. seeking
information, booking venues, inviting guests, but must not offer the views of NYLAF.

Annex A
Specified Bodies to which the CROW Act 2000 & Supplementary Regulations and
Guidance Refer

Page 24
OFFICIAL

Appendix B



The Appointing Authority(ies) (a Highway Authority or National Park Authority)



Any County, Unitary, District or Borough Council within the area of the Forum



The Secretary of State i.e. any Government department with a Secretary of State
e.g. Defra and MoD, as well as ‘executive agencies’ such as the Planning
Inspectorate and Highways England



Natural England



The Forestry Commission



English Heritage



Sports England (the English Sports Council)



Area of Outstanding Natural Beauty (AONB) Conservation Boards



Parish & Town Councils

Page 25
OFFICIAL

Appendix B

Annex B

NORTH YORKSHIRE LOCAL ACCESS FORUM

Local Access Forums perform a statutory function and all section 94(4) bodies are
required under section 94(5) of the CROW Act 2000 to ‘have regard in carrying out
their functions to any relevant advice given to them’ by a Forum. Reflecting the
directives given to forums, the North Yorkshire LAF has drawn up a set of principles
which now underpin their work and advice.









Any new access should be at the highest rights appropriate for
non-motorised users
All rights of way should be maintained to the standard required and,
where needed, upgraded physically and legally to a higher standard
The Forum will work to see rights of way developed to redress the
fragmentation of the network, connect communities and improve links to
places of demand
The Forum will work to develop more access opportunities to include the
widest possible range of users, especially families, children, minority
groups and the less able
The Forum seeks the establishment of an annual budget to fund the
fulfilling of the Rights of Way Improvement Plan (RoWIP)
Whilst the creation of all access is welcome, the Forum stresses that
permissive (temporary) access does not equate with the public benefit of
definitive (permanent) access
The Forum wishes to raise awareness of how different users can enjoy
responsible sharing of routes where appropriate, whilst supporting
challenges to illegal use
The Forum recognises the establishment and challenges of new
initiatives such as coastal access, access to water, access to
woodland and the dedication of land for public access

The above may be summarised simply as:
The Forum seeks to maximise every opportunity for improved access,
providing safer journeys for the widest range of users practicable.
The Forum welcomes consultation from all section 94(4) bodies or others who feel
they might benefit from discussion with them. For further information please contact

Page 26
OFFICIAL

Appendix B
the chair through the Secretary to the Forum - Melanie Carr, at North Yorkshire
County Council either by telephone on 01609 533849 or by email at:
melanie.carr1@northyorks.gov.uk

NORTH YORKSHIRE LOCAL ACCESS FORUM
Advice to District Councils as Sec.94 (4) bodies
Whilst each District will have different priorities within its Local Plan, the North Yorkshire
Local Access Forum, in accordance with its statutory remit under sec. 94(5) of the
CROW Act 2000, recommends the following points, which it hopes will be reflected by
every District Council:









The Forum advises that Good Practice in planning matters will incorporate
connections for non-motorised users to local services and the rights of way
network whenever possible. Such routes should be multi-user, if practicable,
to encourage sustainable travel.
That new sites provide informal as well as formal green space.
That Local Plans reflect the objectives of NYCC’s Rights of Way
Improvement Plan and the Local Transport Plan.
That Councils identify popular rights of way so they can put measures in
places to enhance them and ensure their sustainability.
That Councils seek opportunities to remedy missing links in a fragmented
network to encourage healthy and sustainable travel.
Councils should take advantage of Community Infrastructure Levy, Sec.106
arrangements, minerals tax and wind farm contribution to invest in initiatives
and improvements for access.
That Councils recognise the value of strong partnership with NYCC’s rights of
way department to promote the benefits accruing from a useful network of
public paths.

These can be loosely summarised in the advice ‘that all planning applications, should be
considered from the Access point of view, to ensure opportunities for access are
included’. Once missed, it is unlikely they can be added at a future date.
In addition, as Local Access Forums are directed to be inclusive in approach, which
avoids discrimination and provides Best Value in access provision, we strongly advise
that all new paths should be for the widest range of users, as in this way it encourages
sustainable travel and supports safer and healthier journeys for as many as practicable.

Page 27
OFFICIAL

Appendix B
The Forum welcomes engagement. Contact can either be made through your named
LAF member or through the LAF Secretary - Melanie Carr, at North Yorkshire County
Council either by telephone on 01609 533849 or by email at:
melanie.carr1@northyorks.gov.uk

Page 28
OFFICIAL

Appendix C

Yorkshire & Humber Regional Access Forum
POSITION STATEMENT – SHARED USE
This Position Statement has been approved by the Yorkshire & Humber Regional Access Forum. It
is offered to Local Access Forums within the Region who may wish to consider it for adoption
either as it stands or modified to suit local circumstances.
Scope
This Position Statement covers all users entitled to use public rights of way, namely:
Public Footpaths – Pedestrians.
Public Bridleways – Pedestrians, horse riders, cyclists.
Cycle Tracks – Pedestrians, cyclists.
Restricted Byways – Pedestrians, horse riders, cyclists, carriage (horse drawn vehicles) drivers.
Landowners, farmers, and their employees and agents going about their normal business are
permitted to use public footpaths, bridleways and restricted byways in mechanically propelled
vehicles.
Byways Open to All Traffic (BOATs) – As for Restricted Byways plus all mechanically propelled
vehicles.
Unsurfaced County Roads (UCRs) (also known as Unclassified Unsurfaced Roads (UURs) and Green
Lanes) – There are no recorded rights but it is assumed that they are vehicular highways and so
can be used as per BOATs.
Mobility scooters and powered wheelchairs are permitted to use all the above types of public
rights of way.
Greenway – a corridor of land reserved for recreational use, promoting environmental
preservation and access to nature – is a neutral term and does not give ownership to one
particular group unlike “Cycleway”, “Bridleway” or “Footpath”.
Issues arising from shared use
The use of the public rights of way network by different users can often lead to tensions because
of safety considerations. For example walkers and horse riders raise issues such as the speed of
cyclists, lack of any audible warning when being approached from behind, and failure of cyclists to
give way to walkers and horse riders as required by Section 30 of the Countryside Act 1968. The
recent introduction of e-bikes, with their potential higher speeds and their increased weight,
presents additional safety considerations. An e-bike is classed as a cycle so long as it has pedals to
propel it, the electric motor cuts out if travelling at more than 15.5 mph (25 km/hour) and the
power does not exceed 250 watts.
Page 1 of 2

Page 29

Appendix C

Another area of tension is the damage by mechanically propelled vehicles to the surface of
higher status routes (BOATs and UURs) often making them impassable to non-motorised users. In
addition, the increased use of mountain bikes is also helping to create ruts which will be
exacerbated with increased use of e-bikes.
The Forum’s position
Local Access Forums are charged with providing advice on improving public access (whether on
foot or by horse, cycle, canoe, mechanically propelled vehicle or by any other lawful means) to
land for the purposes of open-air recreation and for any other lawful purpose. Consequently, the
advice given by Forums should not favour any particular group or groups over any other.
The Forum’s position on Shared Use is in three parts.
1. The existing public rights of way network – Many user groups have introduced campaigns and
produced leaflets to encourage responsible use of multi-user routes both to foster safety and to
prevent surface damage. The Forum will encourage:





All reputable organisations representing user groups to keep putting the message out to
their members in the responsible use of all shared use public rights of way.
Local highway authorities to introduce/improve signage where appropriate.
The introduction of traffic regulation orders (TROs) to mitigate the damage to higher status
routes by mechanically propelled vehicles.
Where possible the replacement of stiles by gates on footpaths to facilitate use by the less
mobile walker and those needing to use mobility scooters and powered wheelchairs.

2. Creation of new Greenways – The Forum will advise that the design should:






Be wide, level across its width, and with a suitable surface such as Flexipave
(www.kbiuk.co.uk), Nu-Flex (www.nu-flex.co.uk) or Consolid (www.consolid.co.uk/sportsand-leisure)
Have good visibility along the line of the route
Be well signed
Have good connectivity and link into the public rights of way network.

3. Upgrading footpaths to bridleways – Although the Forum supports the improvement of the
path network for the benefit of all users, all proposals should be on a case-by-case basis.

March 2021

Page 2 of 2

Page 30

Appendix D

NORTH YORKSHIRE LOCAL ACCESS FORUM

Draft Position Statement for Preliminary Involvement in Major
Projects
e.g. the recent York-Knaresborough and the Stokesley-Guisborough ‘corridors’, and to be
incorporated with general development queries.
In effect, we need an assurance that developers:

Ensure that existing public rights of way are retained to the same or better surface
standards applicable to the level and classification of usage.



In situations where partial resurfacing of a route is a requirement, an example being
where an existing rural ‘footpath’ is subsumed as part of a development and therefore
becomes a ‘pavement’ this must, whenever practical, be to an acceptable standard
commensurate with the type of usage. Surface is more critical if the existing public right
of way is a ‘bridleway’ catering for equestrian & cycle use and becomes subsumed into
a development as a ‘road’. Surfacing and structures/street furniture are to comply with
the requirements of the Equalities Act 2010.



All structures (gates etc) are to be constructed with suitable materials and specification
that complies with BS5709:2018 and to comply with relevant requirements of s147 of
the Highways Act 1980. A stile is no longer considered acceptable for a new location,
due to the requirements of the Equalities Act 2010.



When it is necessary to divert or re-route sections of public rights of way these must,
whenever practical, be carried out to the local highway authority and/or national
standards with acceptable 'approved' surfacing materials to a standard commensurate
to the type of usage (equestrian) etc.



Any temporary diversion or closure during construction phases to be to a minimum
time scale and in agreement with the local authority.



Any temporary diversions or re-routing should try to alleviate excessive additional
distance, although the shortest alternative may not necessarily be the best - in many
cases a longer route (away from a busy road, or around the perimeter of a field rather
than across it) can be more pleasant for the user, especially when people like circular
routes from home for exercise. All proposed temporary diversions or re-routing is to be
correctly negotiated with the local highway authority and/or rights-of-way department.



Any re-alignment or alterations to the public roads network should not cause the
existing public rights of way network to be severed or terminated, a suitable and safe
means must be negotiated for onward travel applicable to the level and classification
of usage of the public right of way. Major roads are specifically hazardous for all forms
on non-motorised user, pedestrian, cyclist, horse rider & carriage driver.



New housing and commercial/industrial developments need suitable safe access for
non-motorised users (pedestrians, cyclists, equestrian users) to facilitate access to

Page 31
OFFICIAL

Appendix D
local shopping, local services and relevant public transport services. Railway stations
and other public transport hubs need safe & secure bicycle storage facilities. Public
Rights of Way on new developments need to utilise and interlink with the existing public
rights of way network to enable longer-distance recreational use of the existing public
rights of way network, and not to be specifically for 'local' use.


Many proposed housing and commercial/industrial developments are on ‘green field’
sites, possibly in areas with few existing public rights of way. It is important for people
to have access to countryside on their doorstep for enjoying informal recreation,
walking, riding, or cycling. If a new community is being created and existing public
rights of way are lacking, then new access should be created for local circular walks
and rides, for dog walkers, families with pushchairs etc, to be able to gain access to
the local natural environment close to where they live.

Drafted by Paul Sherwood
11 May 2021

Page 32
OFFICIAL

Agenda Item 5
North Yorkshire County Council
North Yorkshire Local Access Forum
26 May 2021
North Yorkshire Unsurfaced Unclassified Roads (UURs) Maintenance Review

1.0

Purpose Of Report

1.1

The purpose of this report is to provide a progress update following the transfer of
management responsibility for maintenance of UURs from Highways &
Transportation (H&T) to the Countryside Access Service (CAS) in July 2018.

2.0

Background

2.1

Following the successful completion of a pilot project between 2016 and 2017 the
transfer of responsibility for maintenance of UURs within North Yorkshire from H&T to
CAS took place on 1 July 2018. With this came a budget of £150,000 that included
the costs associated with a dedicated member of staff. Following successful
completion of the first year’s UUR work programme, this budget increased to £200,000
in financial years 2019-20 and 2020-21.

2.2

Under this arrangement, CAS took on the responsibility for the maintenance of the
entire UUR network within North Yorkshire County Council, including the two National
Parks.

2.3

H&T retain responsibility for Permanent Traffic Regulation Orders; Route Status and
Route Alignment on the UUR network; and final powers of enforcement. Ultimately the
UUR network is still part of the Highways Network and under the authority of NYCC
Highways. CAS responsibility is limited to the maintenance and condition of the routes.

2.4

The reciprocal transfer of responsibility for urban metalled public rights of way from
CAS to H&T is yet to be finalised. This will proceed once a definitive list of routes has
been finalised and agreed.

3.0

Partnership Working

3.1

CAS has worked closely with both the Yorkshire Dales and North York Moors National
Park. Both National Parks have taken on the role of delivery partners and helped to
focus resources on priority UUR routes within their areas. This partnership approach
has been extremely successful, and it would not have been possible to deliver such an
extensive UUR work programme across the county without this support.

Page 33
OFFICIAL - SENSITIVE

3.2

Individual meetings between the two National Park Authorities (NPAs) and the UUR
Officer informs the production of an annual work programme. Where originally a fixed
annual budget was allocated to each NPA, a more flexible approach is now taken, with
the agreed allocations better representing overall network priorities for the year.
NYCCs UUR Officer addresses any UUR issues within the National Park that fall
outside of the priorities of the NPA.

3.3

Progress on the work programme is monitored through regular update meeting
between the NYCC UUR Officer and National Park Ranger Teams. Site visits to look
at various maintenance proposals are arranged on an ad-hoc basis as required. This
partnership approach has resulted in the delivery of an extensive programme of work
to the UUR network across the county. See Appendix 1.

3.4

CAS have continued to work closely with the colleagues in H&T as part of the UUR
transfer, and have benefitted from the extensive historic knowledge that is held within
the local Highway Area Offices, and the Network Strategy Teams.

4.0

User Group Liaison and community engagement

4.1

CAS have made every effort to engage with many of the user groups and stakeholders
in the UUR network. Meetings have taken place with the Trail Riders Fellowship
(TRF), the Green Lane Alliance, as well as Ramblers and Bridleway groups to help
identify specific priorities for each group and help to foster a close working relationship
based on trust and understanding. This approach has continued, with regular ongoing
liaison with all stakeholders (including landowners and estate managers) helping to
inform the UUR Work Programme.

4.2

Membership of the CAS User Liaison Group has expanded to include representatives
from the TRF and GLASS.

5.0

Volunteering

5.1

CAS is well placed to utilise assistance from volunteers in monitoring and maintaining
the UUR network. The CAS Volunteer Coordinator has successfully developed Path
Keeper Agreements with user groups including the TRF and GLASS. These have
engaged in a number of clearance projects that support NYCC in addressing
maintenance issues not covered by the Capital Budget.

5.2

Volunteers from the Green Lane Association have undertaken photographic UUR
surveys on behalf of NYCC – most notably the 27km network of UURs across
Blubberhouses Moor.

Page 34
OFFICIAL - SENSITIVE

6.0

Enforcement

6.1

CAS will make initial contact with landowners to address illegal obstruction of UURs.
This has included, writing enforcement letters / email, telephone conversations and
site meetings. Where this is not successful, then it would be for the relevant Highways
Area Office to escalate enforcement action, with the support of the CAS UUR Officer
and Legal Services.

6.2

It has not yet been necessary to escalate enforcement action to the Highways Area
Office.

7.0

UUR Status

7.1

In line with DEFRA guidance, NYCC Highways hold the following position on the
status of UURs as follows:
“In the case of Unsurfaced Unclassified Roads (UUR); the County Council’s position is
that UURs recorded in North Yorkshire County Council’s List of Streets are public
highways maintainable at public expense. Given this; the County Council
acknowledges that the extent of public rights over those routes must, as a minimum,
extend to pedestrian user though higher public rights may well exist. Determining the
extent of any higher public right is a matter for assessment on a route-by-route basis.
Use of UURs by the public beyond pedestrian user will not generally be prevented by
the County Council except where circumstances dictate that control or prevention of
such use is appropriate. Use of legal orders will be considered where necessary.”

7.2

Following advice from NYCCs Legal Services, the practical interpretation of this
position is as follows:
 UURs user rights must cover pedestrian as a minimum, though higher rights
may exist.
 The extent of higher rights should be determined on a route-by-route basis.
 NYCC will not prevent public access above pedestrian; unless this becomes
necessary – in which case legal orders will be considered.
 Only NYCC as the Highway Authority can take action to prevent access to a
highway. This includes the installation of signage designed to restrict
access.
 Action taken by a third party to restrict access on a UUR (locking of gates,
misleading signage) can be addressed by the Highways Authority through
enforcement action.

Page 35
OFFICIAL - SENSITIVE

8.0

Traffic Regulation Orders (TROs)

8.1

Temporary Traffic Regulation Orders are an essential tool required for the
maintenance of the UUR network. These are required to allow work to be safely
undertaken; to mitigate the risk of injury to the public where a UUR is in a dangerous
condition; or prevent further damage to a route where repairs are required. CAS takes
the lead on implementing Temporary TROs.

8.2

Permanent TROs remain the responsibility of H&T and are processed by the relevant
Highways Area Office. In this way, CAS are able to focus upon the maintenance
requirement of the network rather than becoming involved in decisions relating to
prohibition of use. Any decision to progress a permanent TRO would proceed
following recommendations from CAS.

8.3

In response to concerns that the public had difficulty in identifying active TROs on the
UUR network; all live Temporary TROs and all Permanent TROs are now recorded on
the PRoW section of the NYCC website. These can be found at:
https://www.northyorks.gov.uk/rights-way-public-notices

9.0

Example UUR Projects 2018 to 2021

9.1

U7057 - Coleson Banks, Battersby, North York Moor National Park – 2018-19
Coleson Banks is a steep UUR that leads from the village of Battersby up onto
Battersby Moor and links to a bridleway section of the Cleveland Way National Trail.
The route had been closed for many years as a result of serious water damage that
had left it in a dangerous condition. As well as reinstating the surface of the path, it
was vital to address the drainage issues on the route to ensure that any work carried
out would be sustainable.
This route was highlighted as a priority within the network by the Ryedale Bridleway
Group as well as the TRF. The completion of the work brings an important
recreational link back into use.

Page 36
OFFICIAL - SENSITIVE

Before

After

Page 37
OFFICIAL - SENSITIVE

9.2

U7050 – Percy Cross to Lonsdale, Kildale, North York Moor National Park –
2018-19
Percy Cross to Lonsdale is another steep UUR within the North York Moors National
Park. Like Coleson Banks, this route had been closed for many years as a result of
serious damage that had left it in a dangerous condition for all users. This was
another major project that required extensive drainage work in order to protect the
sandstone surface that has been reinstated.
This route was also highlighted as a priority within the network by the Ryedale
Bridleway Group and the TRF. The essential maintenance to this route, coupled with
the repairs to nearby Coleson Banks, reopens an important link in the recreational
network within this area of the National Park that had been missing for many years.

Before

Page 38
OFFICIAL - SENSITIVE

After

Page 39
OFFICIAL - SENSITIVE

9.3

U1071 – Helwith, Marske, Richmondshire – 2019-20
This popular UUR beween Marske and Helwith in Richmondshire had fallen into
serious disrepair due to failed drainage, exacerbated by vehicular use. The repair
required extensive re-profiling and stoning of the surface, as well as the reestablishment of drainage.
This was a priority UUR for a number of user groups and the work has brought a
popular local route back into use.

Before

Page 40
OFFICIAL - SENSITIVE

After

Page 41
OFFICIAL - SENSITIVE

9.4

U7056 – Sheep Wash, Cod Beck, Osmotherley, North York Moor National Park –
2020-21
Sheep Wash alongside Cod Beck at Osmotherley is another steep UUR within the
North York Moors National Park. This is an extremely popular part of the National
Park and this UUR was in a dangerous condition for most users. The work was
undertaken in partnership with North York Moors National Park.
Before

Page 42
OFFICIAL - SENSITIVE

After

Page 43
OFFICIAL - SENSITIVE

Sheepwash completed work compared with Archive photo circa 1920

Page 44
OFFICIAL - SENSITIVE

10.0 Next Steps
10.1 CAS to continue to manage the maintenance of North Yorkshire’s UUR network on an
ongoing basis. Note that the UUR maintenance budget for 2021/22 has reduced to
£177,500 due to a reduction in the Department for Transport’s Capital allocation to
NYCC.
10.2

Develop a route prioritisation model to inform future UUR maintenance programmes in
conjunction with key stakeholders.

10.3

Finalise the reciprocal transfer of responsibility for the maintenance of urban metalled
public rights of way from CAS to H&T.

10.4

Seek to expand the scope of volunteers and 3rd party groups to assist with routine
small scale maintenance works across the UUR network.

10.5

Work closely with the Nidderdale AONB to establish volunteer lead surveys of the
UUR network to inform future work programmes.

11.0

Recommendation

11.1

It is recommended that NYLAF Members take note of the content of this report.

Ian Kelly
Countryside Access Manager - Travel, Environmental and Countryside Services
Author of Report – Ben Jackson, PROW Officer (UUR)
Background Documents:
None

Page 45
OFFICIAL - SENSITIVE

Appendix 1 – UUR Work Programme July 2018 to March 2021
2018-19
UUR Code
U2345/1/30

UUR Name
WY150 Stainsacre Lane (Track)

Location
Hawsker cum Stainsacre

U2340/9/50

WY 143 Golden Grove

Hawsker cum Stainsacre

U2392/9/50

Church Way

Danby Rigg, Scarborough

U7102/9/50

Plum Tree

nr Danby Botton, Scarborough

U1899/9/30

Windy Pike Lane

Hanlith

U2279/2/80,
U2279/2/60,
U7028/9/90
U7028/9/90

Black Hill Road/ Forest Road

Pockstones Moor

West Cam road

Ten End

U2710/1/40

Widdale Foot

Ling Beck

U429/9/40

Fremington Edge

nr Quarry

U9120/1/30

Richmond Gate

Richmond Gate

U919/1/30

Nipe Lane

Nipe Lane

U814/9/70

Dale Head

Dale Head

U814/9/30

Goat Scar Lane

Goat Scar Lane

U7057
U1071
U7050
U32
U7094
U7010
U8147
U238
U7011
U2293
various
U1584

Coleson Banks
Helwith
Percy Cross
Rudland Rigg (Turkey Nab)
Demesne House
Jagger Lane
Givendale to Cockmoor
Brown Howe Rd
Low Wood Lane
Coverdale Lane
Jagger Lane, Seggimire Lane etc.
Back Lane

Battersby
Marske
Kildale
Ingleby Greenhow
Fylingdales
Gilling with Hartworth
Troutsdale
Stape
Leyburn
Runswick Bay
Various
Husthwaite

Page 46
OFFICIAL - SENSITIVE

Description or work
Delivery Area
Path restoration and surfacing with NYMNP
associated drainage works as
necessary. Cutting back of
encroaching vegetation prior to
ground works.
Report of very wet gateway .
NYMNP
Possibly just needs a load or two of
stone. Need to investigate first.
Surface repair, furniture replacement NYMNP
Surfacing, repair collapsed ditch,
crush and relay stone surface.
In-house surfacing & filling of pot
holes/ deep ruts. Drainage works to
include ditching & culverts.
Landowner consultation required.
In-house surfacing & filling of pot
holes/ wet areas. Consultation
required
Contractor, track re-org, stone
crushing, drainage and surfacing
Contractor, track reprofiling and
ditch maintenance
Contractor, water management installation of cut off drains, side
ditches, minor surfacing.
PC consultation required - possible
in house, removal of encroaching
vegetation / hedge, surfacing works
PC consultation required - possible
in house, removal of encroaching
vegetation / hedge, surfacing works
in-house, surfacing and filling of pot
holes/wet areas
in-house, surfacing and filling of pot
holes/wet areas
Surfacing and drainage
Surfacing and drainage
Surfacing and drainage
Surfacing and drainage
Stone drop for residents.
Clearance
Surfacing
Sufacing
Sufacing and drainage
Clearance and drainage
Access Works
Drainage and surfacing

NYMNP
YDNP

YDNP

YDNP
YDNP
YDNP

YDNP

YDNP

YDNP
YDNP
NYCC
NYCC
NYCC
NYMNP
NYCC
NYCC
NYMNP
NYCC
NYCC
NYMNP
NYCC
NYCC

2019-20
UUR Code
U1071/1/70
U2297
U241
U7057
U2392/9/50

UUR Name
Helwith
Barry Bank
Farwith Road
Coleson Banks
Church Way

Location
Marske
Ugthorpe
Pickering
Battersby
Danby Rigg, Scarborough

Description or work
Surfacing and drainage
Sufacing
Surfacing
Pedestrian footbridge replacement
Surface repair, furniture replacement

Delivery Area
NYCC
NYCC
NYCC
NYCC
NYMNP

U7071 / U7069
U2341/9/50

Troutsdale Brow
Track to Betty Meads
Wood
Marsett - Stalling Busk

Trouts Dale
Cloughton

Section 56 repairs
Surface repairs

NYMNP
NYMNP

Marsett Revetment Wall

YDNP

07028/9/90
U255/9/70
U254
U429

West Cam Road
Dubbing Garth Lane
Low Lane
Fremington Edge
Stake Road

Ten End
Multiple sites
Multiple sites
Quarry
Multiple sites

U2250
U8037/9/70

Moor Lane
Moor Head Lane (BOAT &
UUR)

Grassington
Stainforth

U2318

Deerstones Bridge

Beamsley

U8147
U7054/9/50
U2421/9/50
U2717

Leyburn
Faceby
Scalby
High Ellington

U928
U8006/9/70
U1873/9/50
U7054/9/50
U7081
U615/1/50
U3316/2/70
U8147

Low Moor Lane
Faceby to Whorlton
Beacon Brow Rd
Track from High to Low
Ellington
Goose Lane
Thunder Head Hill
Piper Road to Scugdale
Faceby to Whorlton
Newton Bank
Cliff Lane
Gayle Lane
Low Wood Lane (additional)

Contractor, Rebuild failing revetment
wall
Contractor, Surfacing and drainage
Surfacing and drainage
Surfacing and drainage
Water management.
In house, Surfacing & drainage
maintenance
Surfacing and drainage
In house. Resurface 1km of UUR.
Drainage works - stone culvert &
piped culvert. Costs include ARx6
days + AcRx22days
Replace Footbridge - rebuild
abutments
Emergency Flood Damage Works
Drainage and access works
Delivery of Stone - Ringway
Access works

Thoralby
Lowna
Scugdale
Faceby
Newton Mulgrave
Snainton
Braythorn
Leyburn

Access works
Access works
Culvert errosion works
Additional Draininge works
Drainage and access works
Drainage installation
Surfacing and Drainage
Additional storm damage works.

NYCC
NYCC
NYCC
NYCC
NYCC
NYCC
NYCC
NYCC

U2282/9/50

Track to Tranmire Grange

Access works and surfacing

NYCC

U2323
U429
U7050
U939/1/50

Track to Tranett Bridge
Fremington to Hurst Road,
Percy Cross
Sleight Lane

Scaling Dam, Newton
Mulgrave
East Marton
Hurst to Fremmington
Killdale
Southern end of Lickber Lane

NYCC
NYCC
NYMNP
NYCC

U2421/9/50
U1873/9/50
U32

Beacon Brow Rd
Piper Road to Scugdale
Bank Foot

U1873/9/50
U1872/9/50

Piper Road to Scugdale
Whorlton House to Parish
Crook
West Dike Road
Brown Howe Road
Track to Redmire Moor

Scalby
Scugdale
Ingleby Greenhow
Bewerly Moor
Scugdale
Whorlton

Surfacing
Emergency Flood repairs
Install drainage pipe
Clearance works to facilitate access
works.
Delivery of Stone - W C Watts
Access works
Surfacing and Drainage
Stone delivery - 80 tons
Additional Access works
Pothole infill and surfacing

Stape
Stape
Preston Under Scar

Sufacing
Surfacing
Surfacing

NYCC
NYCC
NYCC

U230/9/30

U2421/9/50
U238
U445/1/70

Page 47
OFFICIAL - SENSITIVE

YDNP
YDNP
YDNP
YDNP
YDNP
YDNP
YDNP

NYCC
NYCC
NYCC
NYCC
NYCC

NYCC
NYCC
NYMNP
NYCC
NYCC
NYCC

2020-21
UUR Code
U3577
U1095
U8006
U1858
U1873
U7056
U586
U7069 / U7071
U2710/1/40

UUR Name
Gale Lane
Sturdy House Lane
Lowna
Kirkby Trods
Raisdale Mill
Sheeps Wash
High Langdale
Troutsdale Brow
Widdale Foot

Location
Fremington
Gayles
Rawson Syke
Kirkby
Scugdale
Osmotherley
Langdale End
Troutsdale
Ling Beck

U2286/9/70

How Gill Lane

Park Top, Eastby

U2279/2/80 U2279/2/60 Black Hill Road

Appletreewick

U1899/9/30
U808/9/40

Windy Pike
Mastiles Lane

Hanlith
Malham Moor

U808/9/60
U8040/9/20
U431/1/50
U447/1/70

Mastilles Lane (East)
Gorbeck Road
Skell Gill
Castle Bolton

Kilnsey
Langcliffe
Reeth
Beldon Beck Bridge

U7028/9/90
U232/1/60
U228/1/40

Ten End
Multiple sites
Four Lane ends
West Witton Steeps
Farnley

Contractor, Surface Repairs & drainage
6 Dales Trail Access improvements

Various

West Cam Road
Stake road
Roman Road - Cam High
Road
Morpeth Gate
DOB PARK ROAD TO
ROSE TREE FARM,
CLIFTON
Various

Description or work
Surfacing
Surfacing, drainage and culvert installation
Surface repairs and drainage.
Regrading and drainage
Regrading and drainage
Regrading, drainage and surfacing
Surfacing - earth works
Surfacing - additional works
Bank reinforcement, track reprofiling and
drainage.
Drainage and resurfacing work to reinstate a
300 metre section of track. In house
Resurface a further 200 metre section of
track. In house
Resurface 1.3km of the UUR. In house.
Drainage and resurface 70m. (16T 75mm dust & 64T 40mm - dust limestone).
Surfacing. In house.
Cattle grid emptying
Drainage / surfacing
1x 24ft timber beam replacement (1 of 4
beams). In house
Contractor,Surface repairs & drainage
In house. Surface repairs & drainage
In house. Surface repairs & drainage

Various

Various

Various

Various

U482/9/50
U7056
U2241
U1849
U3577
Various
U230
U7005
U8006
U2689

Leavening to Burythorpe
Sheeps Wash
School Lane
Plain Moor
Gale Lane
Various
Marsett Bottoms
Low Green
Lowna
Broxa Farm to Lowdales
Lane
Runley Mill
Lowna
Harfa House
Drift Lane
Lund Road
Track from Collinson Road
Rudda Rd to Scarborough
Rd.
Demesne House,
Fylingthorpe

U1052/9/70
U2509

U832
U8006
U1873
U2954/2/90
U41/2/30
U8025/9/50
U2471/9/50
U7094

Various

Delivery Area
NYCC
NYCC
NYMNP
NYMNP
NYMNP
NYMNP
NYMNP
NYMNP
YDNP

YDNP
NYCC

YDNP
YDNP
YDNP
YDNP
YDNP
YDNP
YDNP
YDNP
YDNP
YDNP

UUR Access Clearance - Kitter Lane, Tinkler
Lane, Wykeham, Charlcot
Ryedale
UUR - Ryedale surfacing - Scagglethorpe
and West Heslerton
Various
UUR - Access works, Newton Mulgrave &
High Ellington
Leavening
TRO Signage supply and fit - Leavening
Osmotherly
TRO Signage supply and fit - Sheep Wash
Conistone
Emergency surface repairs
Barton le Willows
90 ton stone delivery
Low House Grinton
Drainage and surfacing
Various
YDNP UUR Minor Works
Track from Marsett to Stalling Busk Stone washed out followng flood.
Thoralby
Culvert clearance and drainage
Hagg End
TRO Installation, clearance and surfacing
Broxa
Clearance, drainage and surfacing

NYCC

Settle
Hagg End
Scugdale
Laverton
Lowna, Farndale East
Rillington
Saintondale

Culvert safety inspection
19 gate repairs
culvert works
instalation of post for TRO sign.
Drainage and surfacing
Hole fill
Stone delivery.

NYCC
NYCC
NYCC
NYCC
NYMNP
NYCC
NYCC

Fylingdales

Surfacing

NYCC

Page 48
OFFICIAL - SENSITIVE

NYCC
NYCC
NYCC
NYCC
NYCC
NYCC
YDNP
YDNP
YDNP
NYCC
NYCC
NYCC

Agenda Item 6
Review of NYLAF’s Position on UURs (Unsealed Unclassified Roads)
Carried out by NYLAF UUR Sub-Group - Will Scarlett, Janet Cochrane &
Barrie Mounty
1.

In order to prepare a statement on NYLAF’s position on UURs, a sub-group of
NYLAF members consisting of Janet Cochrane, Will Scarlett and Barrie Mounty was
formed. Documents where UURs had been discussed previously by the NYLAF were
reviewed, and the sub-group consulted with other LAF groups across the country to
find out their approach to the topic. The overarching aims of the position statement
would be to advise NYCC on their policy regarding UURs, and to bring about a
balanced and mutually respectful and considerate culture of use of UURs by different
groups.
Preamble

2.

UURs (Unsealed, Unclassified Roads) are public highways that were not of sufficient
importance to be incorporated into the modern network of surfaced roads. In the past,
these were paths used by all available means of moving from one place to another, in
particular on foot, on horseback, or by horse-carriage. This long history has left
England and Wales with significant lengths of unsealed highway, which are often
termed ‘green lanes’. Because these routes are ‘unclassified’, a variety of users from
pedestrians to heavy lorries use them, depending on their location and the
practicality of doing so.

3.

It should be recognised that these highways were not engineered for use by
motorised vehicles and would have been maintained by local efforts for the purposes
for which they were intended such as localised farm traffic and light industrial traffic,
usually consisting of horse-drawn vehicles at least until the second half of the 20th
century. Studies elsewhere have shown that this tradition continues in that where
UURs are used by farmers and other land-managers they tend to be kept in a
reasonable state of repair by the efforts of these users because there is an economic
incentive to do so. Where they are in recreational use, however, the damage caused
by users who consider these assets to be a ‘free’ resource can be substantial,
especially in the case of use by motorised vehicles. Often, even basic maintenance is
often not carried out because these ‘highways’ are under a different jurisdiction and
maintenance regime from the Footpaths, Bridleways, and Restricted Byways
managed by the rights-of-way department within Councils.

4.

Nationally, it is unclear whether UURs are covered by the 2026 deadline for recording
rights-of-way, in other words whether a precise status should be clarified and
enshrined in law, or whether since they are already on the definitive List of Streets
they will retain the status of ‘highway’ even after the cut-off date and not be
automatically extinguished. In the absence of national policy on classification of
UURs, each Local Authority has been left to come up with its own approach.
A Variety of Approaches

5.

The consultation with members of other LAFs found a variety of approaches to
dealing with UURs. Some counties of England (for example Warwickshire) decided

Page 49
OFFICIAL - SENSITIVE

as a matter of policy that all their UURs would be given ‘higher rights’, in other words
a status allowing for use by users other than pedestrians, whether cyclists, horseriders, or carriage-drivers, and they have been waymarked accordingly. Other
Councils (e.g. Worcestershire) take the view that because UURs are already
‘highways’ there is no need to submit applications to record higher rights, since these
automatically exist, thus meaning that they are open for use by a wide range of
users, including motorised vehicles when their condition permits.
6.

In Northumberland, a policy decision was taken some time ago that the UURs would
all be individually investigated by one of the Council’s Definitive Map officers so that,
if suitable evidence was found, they would be added to the Definitive Map (after
going through the normal process). In each case, once the status has been decided,
they are waymarked with a fingerpost so the general public knows they have a right
to use them. This is important as many lead to bridleways or footpaths. This work has
been carried out one area at a time and is now nearly complete. Most UURs become
BOATs but often with a Restricted Byway connection to the existing network. Much
the same evidence is used for every case, which has enabled the work to proceed
rapidly.

7.

These counties unfortunately appear to be exceptions. More common is the attitude
reported by a contact from the North Somerset LAF: “We haven't managed to get
anyone from Highways to attend a meeting to explain what they are doing about
green roads or unclassified roads, despite trying for over 3 years”.
UURs in North Yorkshire

8.

The anomalous position of UURs within North Yorkshire has been recognised for
many years, in that they do not form part of the network of sealed highways and yet
are the responsibility of the Highways department. Their condition varies from
excellent dirt-tracks, sometimes even with a tarmac surface, to barely discernible
hollow-ways resembling a boulder-strewn river-bed rather than a ‘highway’.
Sometimes there is no evidence of their existence on the ground at all, as they have
been ploughed up and/or incorporated into neighbouring fields. Yet in many cases
these ‘green lanes’ offer a hugely valuable opportunity to expand the county’s
network of quiet, off-road paths and tracks, in particular by creating circular, trafficfree routes of 5-15 miles for walkers and horse-riders (noting that mountain-bikers
and trail-bikers often prefer longer circuits while road-cyclists prefer more
straightforward sealed roads).

9.

The question of how Councils and LAFs should address UURs and other green lanes
such as BOATs (Byways Open to All Traffic) has been the topic of considerable
debate in North Yorkshire and elsewhere. The matter was discussed in detail by
NYLAF most recently in July 2019, when a useful discussion paper was provided by
Michael Bartholomew. Thorough research has also been carried out by John
Sugden. The NYCC Countryside Access Management team has previously
requested input from NYLAF as to a strategic approach to UUR management,
including prioritisation of issues, in view of the limited resources available and the
need to balance costs against benefits.

Page 50
OFFICIAL - SENSITIVE

10. Previous discussion within NYLAF has highlighted the potential for conflict between
different user-groups, including surface damage by motorised vehicles which has
resulted in restricted access for other groups, especially sight-impaired people and
those with limited mobility, and the impact of use by recreational motorised vehicles
on the ‘peace and tranquillity’ which is much prized by many countryside visitors and
residents. Added to this is the negative effect of motorised vehicles on flora and
fauna, especially where UURs pass through or near SSSIs or other sites of interest to
nature conservation.
11. It is accepted that for some users, exploring the countryside on trail-bikes or by 4WD
vehicle is their principal form of recreation, and that some of these users may
experience mobility issues which prevent them from engaging in more active forms of
countryside enjoyment. However, as stated in the preamble to this document, there
must be mutual respect and balance in use between different groups, with the
activities of one sector not impacting seriously on others. In his 2019 report, Michael
Bartholomew asks the pertinent question as to whether “travelling by car along a
main road – which nobody would call ‘open air recreation’ - suddenly changes its
essential character when the vehicle leaves the tarmac and enters a green lane?”
The implication of this point is that motorised vehicles rarely have a place in
countryside access on unsealed roads unless these are robust enough not to be
damaged by heavier and/or fast-moving wheeled traffic.
12. Trail-biking may justifiably be classed as ‘open-air’ recreation, but the noise pollution
and surface damage often caused by these vehicles arguably runs counter to the
mental refreshment provided by peace and tranquillity that is sought by a majority of
countryside residents and visitors. In addition, it could be argued that the cost of
repairs to ancient highways due to damage by motorised vehicles is an overly
burdensome use of limited resources. However, in the past it appears that privileged
access by certain user-groups, some of which benefit from significant funding, has
led to prioritisation of their access requirements over and above the needs of other
less vociferous groups. This situation should be addressed by ensuring a more
balanced approach which takes into account the requirements of a wider range of
user-groups.
Review Conclusions
13. Having considered their findings the sub-group has drawn up the following list of draft
principles for NYLAF’s consideration:


All 700kms. of North Yorkshire’s UUR’s should be surveyed and classified
according to their current status and use, the likelihood of bringing them to a
standard for wider user-groups, and their usefulness in terms of extending the
off-road network of circular and linear routes for specific users, especially
vulnerable groups. This process should be under the management of CAS, using
teams of trained volunteers and applying a scoring matrix based on criteria
devised by CAS in consultation with key user-groups.



This process should be transparent and objective and must be resistant to
lobbying by high-profile and/or well-funded niche groups.

Page 51
OFFICIAL - SENSITIVE



Depending on the result of this survey, each UUR – or section thereof - should be
classified as Footpath, Bridleway, Restricted Byway or BOAT and brought under
the management of the Passenger Transport, Waste & Countryside Services
(specifically Countryside Access) rather than Highways & Transportation, as
appropriate. This will enable resources to be targeted in order to maintain the
path at an appropriate standard for its classification.



Given the limited resources of NYCC, which is likely to prevail for some time to
come, there should be greater use of volunteers both in surveying the UURs and
in ensuring annual maintenance checks, possibly with more significant attempts
to raise funds for maintenance and repairs from the private and third sector.



NYCC’s more systematic approach to use of UURs should be based on antidiscriminatory policies, bearing in mind the needs of people of limited mobility,
especially in the context of an ageing population. It should also be remembered
that there are sex differences between different forms of recreational use of open
spaces: mountain-biking, road-cycling and trail-biking are predominantly enjoyed
by men, while horse-riding is predominantly enjoyed by women. This means that
a focus on creating mountain-bike trails, cycle routes, and trail-biking
opportunities as opposed to good-quality, well-maintained bridleways and
restricted byways has a built-in policy discrimination which must be avoided.

14. In conclusion, the sub-group believes that:


UURs should be considered an integral part of North Yorkshire’s traffic-free
public rights-of-way network;



There is an excellent opportunity to add these historic paths and tracks to the
existing rights-of-way network, in particular for the most vulnerable and nonmotorised groups of road-user1, and to support the Government’s agenda of
active travel in the pursuit of improved mental and physical health.

Report Recommendation
15. Having considered the review findings, the sub-group recommends that NYLAF
agree the draft principles listed above so that they form may a formal NYLAF Position
statement on UURs.
Author: Janet Cochrane - Chair of Sub-Group

1

Under the proposed new hierarchy of road-users to be included in the revised Highway Code, the most vulnerable
users are pedestrians, cyclists and horse-riders (in that order).

Page 52
OFFICIAL - SENSITIVE

Agenda Item 7
Review of NYCC Webpages Relevant to NYLAF
Carried out by NYLAF Website Sub-Group - Will Scarlett, Janet Cochrane &
David Lepper
1.

As a result of suggestions at a NYLAF meeting, a sub-group was formed to look at
two relevant pages on the NYCC website:

‘Walks, Horse and Bike rides’ - https://www.northyorks.gov.uk/walks-horse-andbike-rides

Information on the Local Access Forum on the rights-of-way information and
advice page - https://www.northyorks.gov.uk/rights-way-information-and-advice

2.

By email and video-conferencing, the sub-group agreed some actions to review the
two pages, namely:

What did we think about what is currently on the webpages?

Were the pages fit for purpose?

How interactive were they and is there enough information on them?

Who ‘owned’ the pages, and can we liaise with them?

What recommendations could we make?

To individually look at the pages.

Will Scarlett emailed the Countryside Access Manager.

To look at what other LAF’s had in terms of websites, etc.

To research where information on other walks and rides in North Yorkshire could
be found on the internet.
Observations

3.

NYLAF webpage:


The current page does not offer much information about what NYLAF does, and
could be better used to highlight its work. The description of the role of the LAF is
dry and dull, covering the background legal context but not informative on what
this group actually does. In some places the spacing and punctuation are
careless.



The geographical coverage of the NYLAF is NOT the whole of North Yorkshire.
The separation of geographical responsibility with the two LAF's covering the
National Parks needs to be highlighted, and a map should be added, clearly
showing the precise area each forum actually covers.



There is no ‘sense of place’ or the locality we cover from an access perspective,
i.e. what is interesting or special about our area, for instance the proposed Coast
to Coast National Trail, or on long-distance recreational routes in our area such
as the Ripon Rowel Walk, Nidderdale Way, Foss Walk and Knaresborough
Round.



There is no information on the interests and responsibilities (within NYLAF) of
each member.



The current page has nothing on achievements, projects, or an annual report on
what the NYLAF has done. Some case studies on initiatives, issues, or recent
consultations that the forum has dealt with would be useful.

Page 53
OFFICIAL

4.



There are no current news items apart from a request for new members to join
NYLAF, with no clarification on gaps in expertise or interests required; this
section could stress the need for farmers, landowners and other land managers
to achieve a better balance in this group.



No indication of future issues or priorities for this group, giving the impression of
not being forward-looking or proactive with a clear vision.



There are no contact details other than for NYLAF’s Secretary.

Walks, Horse and Bike Rides page:


The concept of the page was liked by all.



Having downloadable pdfs was thought to be a good idea, particularly for horseriders.



It also provided reminders about the Countryside Code, the health benefits of
countryside access, the classification of different public rights-of-way and their
markings, and contact info for NYCC.

5.

The sub-group wondered how many ‘hits’ on the page there had been and when the
page was last updated, as there didn’t appear to be many routes shown for a county
the size of North Yorkshire. They also noted that all the horse-rides were only in the
northern Yorkshire Dales.

6.

The sub-group agreed that providing links to already published content would be a
more efficient way of providing information to the public, creating less of a burden on
NYCC.

7.

Further Findings:
The Countryside Access Manager confirmed that as Head of the Service he is
responsible for both the Walks, Horse and Cycle Rides and NYLAF webpages, and in
the first instance it would be him who would receive feedback on them.

8.

As a general rule, both pages are reviewed annually and/or when there are any
significant changes. In addition, there are links to information / data that is routinely
updated and not saved directly in the pages themselves, as well as links to third party
websites (particularly relevant for the walk, horse and bike ride pages).

9.

He also confirmed that since the last LAF meeting, he had been made aware of a
corporate drive to review all the Council’s webpages to ensure the website meets
new accessibility laws. The fundamental change is that they are no longer able to
have downloadable documents on the website, including pdfs; the information in
these will need to be embedded in the pages themselves. The team is undertaking a
review to understand the ramifications of these changes. Given current limited staff
resources this will fall short of a wholesale review of the webpages, but nonetheless it
is an opportunity to ensure that they are fit for purpose, and thus any feedback from
the LAF will be welcomed and will inform the Corporate review.

10. He later clarified that there was a way to measure the number of hits on any
webpages but he did not have any figures at that time. The sub-group agreed this
could be of benefit to show how useful the relevant pages were for the amount of
effort put into them.

Page 54
OFFICIAL

Review Recommendations
11. Having considered their findings the sub-group has drawn up a list of suggested
recommendations for NYLAF’s consideration.
12. In regard to the NYLAF webpage, as NYLAF has no dedicated website of its own,
this page should:
i.

Become the main place where information regarding the LAF is held

ii.

Explain the purpose of the LAF, including strategic vision and aims for the future.

iii.

Highlight the need for recruitment from a diverse background, to ensure
representation of as wide a range of user-groups as possible.

iv. Make clear links to the health benefits of countryside access, particularly in light

of the pandemic and the Government’s ‘active travel’ agenda.
v.

It was felt that an independent website for the LAF was not worth pursuing at this
time.

vi. The page should also include:









A visual representation of the area covered by the NYLAF and outline
information giving a sense of place and pride in the area from an access
perspective.
Contact details for the rights-of-way team as well as for NYLAFs Secretary.
A list of who sits on NYLAF, with a biosketch and photo of each member (see
Note 1 for examples).
News items with examples of the type of work done, advice given and
achievements.
Links to other websites relevant to countryside access in North Yorkshire,
including TIC's, the National Trust, and any local information on bodies such
as the Ramblers Association, British Horse Society, Cycling UK, Sustrans, etc.

13. In regard to the Walks, Horse and Bike Rides webpages:
vii. The pages could be further enhanced by reviewing what walks and rides are on

there and revising them if necessary, and by sourcing further examples,
particularly in light of the increased use of the rights-of-way network during the
Covid pandemic.
viii. Pdfs of walks and rides should still be available so that they can be printed and

taken out by the public, as well as being available on smartphones and other
devices.
ix. Since NYCC’s resources are limited, a student researcher or volunteers could

review reputable sites where other information on walks and rides could be
sourced and look at linking them to those web pages, e.g. National Parks, Ride
Yorkshire, Yorkshire Water, Yorkshire Post, Craven Herald (see Note 2 below for
examples).
x.

The health benefits of countryside access should be better integrated with other
relevant schemes or projects run by NYCC or partner organisations, particularly
post-pandemic.

xi. Further work could be done by a working group to plan and implement the above

recommendations jointly with Ian Kelly and in consultation with NYCC IT support.

Page 55
OFFICIAL

Report Recommendation
14. Having considered the review findings, the sub-group recommends that NYLAF
agree the draft recommendations listed above so that they may be submitted to
NYCC’s Countryside Access Service to inform the ongoing corporate review of the
Council’s website.

Author: Will Scarlett - Chair of Sub-Group

Note 1: Sample Biosketches
Will Scarlett: After 30 years in North Yorkshire Police, a career which saw him serve
across the county, finally retiring at Skipton as Craven Inspector, Will took on a new
challenge: learning to ride and drive carriages. Taking his horse out for rides and drives
opened up the challenges of understanding the rights-of-way network, planning routes,
and finding places to park horseboxes. This led to further involvement as the Yorkshire
and Cleveland Access Officer for the British Driving Society, as well as helping to research
local rights-of-way in the southern part of the Yorkshire Dales. Sitting on the North
Yorkshire Local Access Forum is an opportunity to use these experiences to help the
County Council and other bodies improve access for everyone within North Yorkshire
David Lepper: After a 30-year career working for the Countryside Commission through to
Natural England, David has a good working knowledge of ROW law and issues. He is a
keen walker, having completing 15+ long-distance recreational paths including the Coast
to Coast and the Ripon Rowel Walk. He was previously an active member of the
Todmorden ‘Walkers are Welcome’ group, for which he reviewed key recreational paths
and links around the town. He has previously served as a Parish Councillor, taking the
lead on rights-of-way in his local area, producing a new Parish Walks leaflet, and chairing
a Parish Plan Group. He is well aware of the needs of other rights-of-way users, including
through accompanying his partner, a horse-rider, on countryside rides.
Janet Cochrane is often to be found exploring the bridleways and byways of North
Yorkshire from the back of a horse, and occasionally on foot and bicycle. Her career has
principally been spent in the travel industry, academia and consultancy, with a particular
interest in responsible tourism to national parks and other rural areas. She is keen to
ensure that public rights-of-way remain both usable and used, and runs a small social
enterprise encouraging people to get out on their horses to ride the traditional paths and
tracks which are an important part of our heritage. She is an Access and Bridleways
Officer for the British Horse Society, and also General Secretary of the North York Moors
Association.
Note 2: Where to Walk, Ride, Cycle and Wheel in North Yorkshire
All public rights-of-way are recorded by the County Council on a map which is a legal
record – this is the Definitive Map. You can view the map online through NYCC’s website:
it is called the ‘Out and About Map’ and it shows Footpaths, Bridleways, green lanes, and
more. The link to the map is: https://www.northyorks.gov.uk/rights-way-maps
This brings you to a page with several links. The one you need is ‘View Public Rights of
Way’. Although this shows the official routes, there is no indication of whether they are in
good or poor condition, or where to park, or good circular routes. To get you out and
about, the websites below are helpful.

Page 56
OFFICIAL

Walking
https://www.northyorks.gov.uk/walks-horse-and-bike-rides
https://www.walkingenglishman.com/northyorkshire.htm
https://www.komoot.com/guide/47703/hiking-in-north-yorkshire
https://www.alltrails.com/england/north-yorkshire
https://www.go4awalk.com/walks/uk-county-walks/walks-in-north-yorkshire.php
https://www.northyorkmoors.org.uk/visiting/enjoy-outdoors/walking
https://www.countryfile.com/go-outdoors/walks/best-walks-in-the-north-york-moors/
https://nidderdaleaonb.org.uk/visiting/outdoor-and-active/
Horse-riding:
https://www.northyorks.gov.uk/walks-horse-and-bike-rides
https://www.yorkshire.com/inspiration/outdoors/country-pursuits/horse-trails-and-loops
https://www.rideyorkshire.org/self-guided-rides/
https://www.northyorkmoors.org.uk/visiting/enjoy-outdoors/horse-riding
Out and About | Howardian Hills
Cycling:
https://www.northyorks.gov.uk/walks-horse-and-bike-rides
https://www.sustrans.org.uk/find-a-route-on-the-national-cycle-network/
https://www.komoot.com/guide/47705/road-cycling-routes-in-north-yorkshire
https://www.epicroadrides.com/destinations/cycling-uk/yorkshire-dales/
https://www.discoveryorkshirecoast.com/discover/outdoor-adventure/cycling
https://www.northyorkmoors.org.uk/visiting/enjoy-outdoors/cycling/our-cycle-routes
https://www.yorkshire.com/inspiration/outdoors/on-wheels/leisure-and-road-cycling
https://pedalnorth.com/north-yorks-moors-road-cycling-routes/
Wheeling
https://www.alltrails.com/england/north-yorkshire/ada
https://www.accessiblecountryside.org.uk/yorkshire
https://www.northyorkmoors.org.uk/visiting/enjoy-outdoors/walking/easy-access-walks
http://www.opencountry.org.uk/wp-content/uploads/2018/11/North-Yorkshire-Directory2018.pdf

Page 57
OFFICIAL

This page is intentionally left blank

Agenda Item 8
North Yorkshire Local Access Forum
26 May 2021
District Council and LAF Project Updates
Report of the Secretary

1.0
1.1

2.0

Purpose of the Report
An opportunity for LAF members to update the Forum on District Council liaison
and other LAF representative project activity since the last meeting.

Background

2.1 The LAF operates an agreed list of nominated representatives willing to act as the
first point of liaison with the constituent District Councils in relation to planning and
other relevant matters. Individual LAF members are also nominated from time to
time to take a lead on specific projects that the LAF has an interest in or in
representing the LAF on other partnership bodies. Both are represented in the table
below:
Name
Will Scarlett

Representation
Craven District

Barrie Mounty

Selby District

Rachel Connelly
Roma Haigh
Paul Sherwood
Helen Soutar
County Councillor
David Jeffels
Vacant

Hambleton District
Richmondshire District
A1 & A19
Ryedale District
HS2
NYCC Countryside Access Service User Group
Regional Access Forum A66
Harrogate District
Scarborough District
Regional Access Forum
2026

2.2 This agenda item provides an opportunity for the Forum to be updated on activity
since the previous meeting.

Page 59
OFFICIAL

3.0 District Council Liaison
3.1 The following updates have been provided by Rachel Connolly:


The impact of Covid on working-from-home has been very negative from the
point of view of communication with all sec.94 bodies, particularly in
Richmond. It is disappointing that queries are seldom answered in time to be
useful and in the case of Highways England it is now months since they
promised to forward the update of suggested improvements for NMUs relating
to the A1 upgrade. Independent of the Forum I was approached for help in
organising a user-survey of a stretch of the A66 that was dualled 15 years ago,
which I hope will be useful when they come to decisions on the upgrading
project in hand. As you will be aware County Hall has not been able to make
the definitive map and statements available to the public in the normal way
likewise the county archive office.

3.2 The following updates have been provided by Roma Haigh:

4.0



Responded to consultation on “Statement of Community Involvement” - March
2021 ;



In touch with the Ryedale Cycle Forum - work should have started on Malton to
Pickering route but I can’t find details



Attended Yorkshire Wolds Way zoom meeting in March 2021. The trail is in
good condition and has seen increased usage over the lockdowns. District
Council tourist partners fed back on their promotional activities.



In touch with Ryedale Council who would be happy to meet once the
coronavirus restrictions have been fully lifted.

Other Updates

4.1 Nominated representatives are invited to report verbally on any other activity
undertaken since the last meeting.
5.0

Recommendation

5.1

That members:
i) Note the updates;
ii) Agree any further actions required

BARRY KHAN
Assistant Chief Executive (Legal and Democratic Services)
County Hall
NORTHALLERTON
Report Author: Melanie Carr, Secretary to North Yorkshire Local Access Forum

Page 60
OFFICIAL

Agenda Item 9
North Yorkshire Local Access Forum
26 May 2021
Forward Plan Report
1.0

Purpose of the Report

1.1

To consider, develop and adopt a Forward Plan of items of business for future
meetings.

2.0

Background

2.1

The ‘Guidance on Local Access Forums in England’ published by the Department
for Environment, Food and Rural Affairs (Defra) strongly recommends that forums
prepare a forward work programme which sets out the forum’s priorities and special
areas of interest.

2.2

This can play an important role in helping the forum to:
•
•
•
•
•
•

Ensure a focus on issues which are the most relevant for the area
Clarify the issues on which the County Council or other section 94(4) bodies
would benefit from receiving advice
Timetable when specific matters are likely to be considered
Inform the public about the forum’s work
Identify training needs
Review effectiveness and prepare an annual report.

3.0

Forward Plan

3.1

The Forward Plan is attached at Appendix A, which lists the agreed meeting dates
for the coming municipal year.

3.2

The Forum meets three times a calendar year but may choose to agree further
meeting dates (based on need), and may set up sub-groups to progress specific
pieces of work outside of the formal meetings.

4.0

Recommendation

4.1

Forum members are asked to agree the work programme for the remaining
meetings in 2021/22, subject to any additions/amendments identified at this
meeting

BARRY KHAN
Assistant Chief Executive (Legal and Democratic Services)
County Hall
NORTHALLERTON
Report Author: Melanie Carr, Secretary to North Yorkshire Local Access Forum

Page 61
OFFICIAL

Appendix A

NORTH YORKSHIRE
LOCAL ACCESS FORUM
Forward Plan 2021/22
Date of Meeting
Standing items









26 May 2021






29 September 2021




26 January 2022



Suggested Future
Items

•
•
•
•

Minutes
Matters Arising
Public Questions and Statements
Consultations
Secretary’s Update Report
District Council Liaison Updates
Forward Plan
CAS UUR Management Review
Feedback on Sub-group review of CAS related webpages on
Council website
Feedback on Sub-group review of NYCC’s UUR Statement
Draft Position Statement for Preliminary Involvement in Major
Projects
CAS Update on Use of Volunteers
Highways Update on:

Active Travel Fund;

Capability Fund and Travel Plans;

Latest Government guidance (inc cycling)

Developer Design Guide;

Any further funding opportunities.

Rights of Way Improvement Plan
In-depth discussion on Reinstatement
Proposed joint working with Yorkshire Dales and North York
Moors Local Access Forums
Draft NYCC Active Travel Strategy

Page 62
OFFICIAL

